
LICENSING BOARD 
 
Venue: Town Hall, Moorgate 

Street, Rotherham.  S60 
2TH 

Date: Wednesday, 13 April 2011 

  Time: 9.30 a.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 

 
 
1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.  
  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 2) 
  

 
4. Licensing Service - Proposed Fee Increase (Pages 3 - 7) 
  

 
5. House to House Collections (Pages 8 - 19) 
  

 
6. Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 
The following item is likely to be considered in the absence of the Press and 
Public as being exempt under the Police Act 1997 and Paragraphs 3 and 7 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (business affairs 
and prevention of crime) 

 
 
7. Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver's Licence (Pages 20 - 31) 
  

 

 



LICENSING BOARD - 16/03/11 23Q 

 

 

LICENSING BOARD 
16th March, 2011 

 
Present:- Councillor Wootton (in the Chair); Councillors Barron, Buckley, Dodson, Doyle, 
Falvey, Goulty, J. Hamilton, N. Hamilton, Jack, Nightingale, P. A. Russell, Slade and Swift. 
 

Apologies for absence were received from The Mayor (Councillor McNeely) and Councillors 
Burton, Havenhand and Sangster.  
 
Q48. MINUTES  

 
 Resolved:- That the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Board held on 16th 

February, 2011 be approved as a correct record for signature by the 
Chairman. 
 

Q49. LICENSED VEHICLE SPECIFICATION AND INSPECTION CRITERIA  

 
 The Board considered a report by the Licensing Manager proposing the 

introduction of a new inspection criteria and licensed vehicle specifications for 
vehicles licensed for either hackney carriage or private hire purposes. 
 
In order to introduce an effective, consistent and transparent approach to 
licensed vehicle standards and specifications in Rotherham, it was proposed 
that a set of documentation was published that outlined :- 
 

- The standards applicable to all licensed vehicles, including the criteria to 
be considered during a vehicle inspection to establish a vehicle met the 
required visual and mechanical conditions for licensing by Rotherham 
Licensing Authority 

 

- The specifications that licensed vehicles must meet in order to be 
considered appropriate as a licensed vehicle by Rotherham Licensing 
Authority (including requirements in relation to the Equalities Act 2011) 

 

- The Licensing Authority documentation relevant to vehicle inspection 
process 

 
The draft licensed vehicle inspection and specification manual, based on best 
practice guidance, was submitted. 
 
Discussion and a question and answer session ensued focusing on the 
proposed requirements regarding the number of vehicle doors. 
 
Resolved:- (1) That the vehicle specification and inspection process with regard 
to  Rotherham licensed vehicles, as now submitted, be approved. 
 
(2) That officers be authorised to commence a period of appropriate 
consultation on the proposals. 
 
(3) That a further report be submitted to this Board as soon as reasonably 
practicable following the completion of the consultation process, with a view to 
approving the introduction of the vehicle inspection guidance and specification 
manuals. 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



24Q  LICENSING BOARD - 16/03/11 
  

 

 
Q50. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC.  

 
 Resolved:- That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 

the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the Police Act 1997 and Paragraphs 3 and 7 of Part 
I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (business affairs and 
prevention of crime). 
 

Q51. HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER'S LICENCE  

 
 The Board considered a report by the Director of Housing and Neighbourhood 

Services relating to the hackney carriage/private hire driver’s licence held by 
Mr. A.K. 
 
Resolved:- That the licence held by Mr. A.K. be revoked. 
 

Q52. HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS' LICENCES - APPLICATIONS  
 

 The Board considered reports by the Director of Housing and Neighbourhood 
Services relating to applications for the grant of hackney carriage/private hire 
drivers’ licences from Messrs. J.H.R.,  Q.M.Y., M.H.S., N.C.A. and A.A. 
 
Messrs. J.H.R., Q.M.Y., M.H.S., N.C.A. and A.A. attended the meeting and were 
interviewed by the Board. 
 
Resolved:- (1) That Mr. J.H.R. be granted a licence for a period of twelve 
months, subject to the satisfactory completion of the local knowledge test, 
Driving Standards Agency test and medical. 
 
(2) That Mr. N.C.A. be granted a licence for a period of three years, subject to 
the satisfactory completion of the Driving Standards Agency test and medical. 
 
(3) That the applications from Messrs. Q.M.Y., M.H.S. ad A.A. be refused. 
 

 
 

Page 2



 

Meeting: Licensing Board 

Date: 13th April, 2011 

Title: Licensing Service – Proposed fee increase  

Directorate: Neighbourhood and Adult Services  

 
5. Summary 
 

This report outlines the proposed licensing fee increases to be effective from 1st 
April 2011 in relation Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Vehicles and Private Hire 
Operators. 

 
6. Recommendations 
 

(i) That Members approve the proposed fee structure for the vehicle and operator 
licensing fees. 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 4Page 3



 
 

7. Proposals and Details 
 

The proposed increase in licensing fees reflects the direct costs involved in 
maintaining the current level of administrative and enforcement services. The 
increase is necessary to ensure the cost of delivering services is met within budget.   
 
In relation to the charges for testing vehicles by Translinc they use the Motoring RPI 
Index to set their charges. This is currently running at 4.7%. However this year they 
have only increased their charges by 2% acknowledging current budgetary 
constraints. The only fee not subject to any change is the Missed Appointment 
Charge. The fees have been rounded up to the nearest pound to make the 
administration of the system much easier. 
 
In relation to vehicle and operator fees it is a statutory requirement that the fees are 
advertised in the local press, inviting objections within 28 days of the date the notice 
being placed. The notice appeared in the Rotherham Advertiser on Friday 25 
February 2011 and the date for objections to be received was Friday 25 March 
2011. 
 
In addition letters were sent to all Hackney Carriage proprietors, Private Hire 
Operators and Private Hire Vehicle proprietors advising them of the proposed 
increase to fees and inviting comments. 
 
We have received one representation/comment about the proposed increase, 
details of which are attached in Appendix B. 
 
 
 
 
 

8. Finance 
 

Local Authorities can only set fee levels (where they are non-statutory and not 
prescribed) which are reasonable and proportionate to the costs incurred in 
providing a licensing service, in terms of administration processes and enforcement 
responsibilities. 

 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties  

 
Failure to recover an appropriate level of revenue from licensing fees would result in 
the cost of service provision being greater than the income received. This would 
mean the service could not be delivered in budget which could lead to a reduction in 
the levels of services provided, especially in terms of enforcement. 
 

10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 

Failure to recover funding sufficient to meet the costs of the service could result in 
the section failing to deliver its statutory functions. The setting of fees, as part of 
the budget setting process, forms part of the Councils Service and Financial 

Page 4



Planning framework which supports the delivery of cost effective and efficient 
services. 
 
The setting of fees as part of the budget setting process is consistent with the 
Corporate Plan’s cross cutting themes of sustainable development and fairness as 
it ensures the deliver of a cost effective licensing service. It also ensures that the 
Council continues to maintain its statutory functions and undertakes enforcement 
to support the deliver of safe and sustainable communities in Rotherham.  

 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 

 
Consultation with all those who will be affected by the proposed changes, i.e all 
vehicle proprietors and private hire operators have been sent a letter outlining the 
proposals. 
 

 
Contact Name: Deborah Bragg, Licensing Manager, 34524 
 deborah.bragg@rotherham.gov.uk  
 

Page 5



APPENDIX A 

 
 

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Vehicles 
 
Application Fee      £105.00 
(vehicles under the age of 5 licensed for 1 full year) 

 
Application Fee      £52.50 
(vehicles over the age of 5 licensed for 6 months) 

 
Inspection Fees – Current Fees charged by Translinc 

 
New Applications/Renewals/Replacement Vehicles £76.00 
Including issuing of MOT Certificate where applicable 

 
Intermediate Inspection     £64.00 

 
Missed Appointment     £50.00 
(unless exceptional circumstances can 
be demonstrated) 

 
Full Retest       £76.00 
(where use of smoke meter/brake tester/ 
headlight beam tester is required) 

 
Partial Retest      £36.00 
(all items except those which are identified 
as free within VOSA Guidelines) 

 
Vehicle Plates      £30.00 
(vehicles under the age of 5 licensed for 1 full year) 

 
Vehicle Plates      £15.00  
(vehicles over the age of 5 licensed for 6 months) 

 
 

Transfer of Vehicle Licence    £39.00 
(from one owner to another) 

 
Approval of trailer for attachment    £34.00 
to vehicle  

 
Approval of advertisement     £36 per advert 

 
Hackney Carriage Door Sign    £5.00 

 
Private Hire Operators 

 
1 to 3 vehicles      £133 
4 to 20 vehicles      £179 
21 to 40 vehicles      £424 
Over 40 vehicles      £624 

 

Rotherham Borough Council – Proposals for Licensing Fees 2011/12 

Page 6



 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

Table of Responses received to consultation on Proposed Increase to Vehicle and 
Operator Fees 

 

NAME OF RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

Mr L Port ‘I am wishing to object to the proposed rise in 
fees for the granting of private hire operators, 
hackney carriage and private hire vehicles on 
the following grounds – 
 
1 Rotherham Council has announced no 
increase in council tax fees. I do consider 
these proposed rises to stealth tax. 
 
2 The private hire operators fees are unfair 
    e.g. 1 to 3 vehicles - £133 = £44.33  
    per   vehicle 
over 30 vehicles - £624 = £21.40 per vehicle 

 
A firm like A1 taxis has over a hundred 
vehicles, therefore the unit price would be 
£6.24 per vehicle. 
 
3 In my experience the licensing department 
is simply a money collecting department that 
issues pieces of paper and provided no 
services or support in return. 
 
4 I also want to point out that Rotherham 
Council has failed to comply with government 
instructions to deregulate the issue of 
Hackney Carriage Licence. 
 

 

Page 7



1 

 

1.  Meeting: Licensing Board 

2. Date: 13 April 2011 

3. Title: Determination of Licensing Issues - House to House Collections 

4. Programme 
Area: 

Neighbourhoods and Adult Services  

 
 
5. Summary 
 

This report concerns applications made for proposed House to House collection 
Promoters permits in or about the Borough of Rotherham.  
 
Where a person who is promoting, or proposes to promote, a collection in any locality 
for a charitable purpose makes an application to the authority for the area in the 
prescribed manner specifying the purpose of the collection and the locality within 
which the collection is to be made, and furnishes them with the prescribed information, 
the authority shall, subject to the provisions of the act, grant to them a licence 
authorising them to “promote” a collection within that locality for that purpose. 
 
“Promoter” means, in relation to a collection, a person who causes others to act as 
collectors for the purposes of the collection. 

 
 
6. Recommendations 
 

THAT MEMBERS INFORM THE LICENSING OFFICER OF THEIR DECISION ON 
EACH CASE. 

 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS Agenda Item 5Page 8



2 

7. Proposals and Details 
 
The following application for a promoters permit has been received by the Licensing Office 
for consideration of a House to House collection:- 
 
1. Charity/Charitable Purpose: Little Treasures Children’s Trust – Charity Reg. 1119024 

Permit Applicant D Collins – (Director for East London Textiles Ltd) 
Permit Collection Area Whole Borough Area  
Collection Dates/times 10/04/2011 to 09/04/2011 

 
Further details and the application for this permit, are attached at “Appendix A” of this 
report.  
 
Should the licence be granted at the hearing any permit would only run from the date the 
Members of the board approve the grant to the requested expiry date unless otherwise 
granted by members. 
 
8. Finance 
 
Permits for House to House collections in or about the Borough of Rotherham are provided 
free of charge to applicants. Any relating enforcement and other matters of application 
processing are financed through the authority’s normal budgeting methods. 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
Failure to consider each application to the extent that members feel necessary to satisfy 
themselves they have reached a reasoned decision could lead to inappropriate collections 
being made within the Borough.  
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
The granting of House to House permits is consistent with the Corporate Plan and 
community strategy as it ensures the deliver under the themes of a Safer and Fairer 
Rotherham; also ensuring that the Council continues to maintain its statutory functions and 
undertakes appropriate enforcement to support the delivery of safe communities in 
Rotherham. 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 
Applications received, as detailed in section 7 of this report and associated appendices.  
 
 
 
Contact Name: Katy Giller, Senior Licensing Officer, 4525, katy.giller@rotherham.gov.uk  

Page 9



3 

APPENDIX A 

 

 

 

 

Page 10



4 

 

Page 11



5 

 

 

 

 

Page 12



6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13



7 

Page 14



8 

 

 

Page 15



9 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 16



10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



11 

 
 

Page 18



12 

 

Page 19



Agenda Item 7 Page 20
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Licensing Service - Proposed Fee Increase
	5 House to House Collections
	7 Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver's Licence

